

LEGEND:

~~Proposed Amendment~~ – Deleted/Removed

Proposed Amendment – Added/New

Proposed Amendment – Moved/Rearranged

24.04.050 Off-street parking required.

[...]

TABLE OF REQUIREMENTS

USE OR STRUCTURE

NO. OF PARKING SPACES

A. RESIDENTIAL

[...]

(8) Accessory dwelling unit

No parking spaces required (See Municipal Code Section 24.05.020D8(~~f~~))

[...]

24.05.020 Permitted structures and uses.

The following structures and uses are permitted on each building and site in the residential zones as stated below, subject to the provisions of this chapter and Chapter 24.04, Vehicle Parking.

[...]

D. Permitted Accessory Uses and Structures. Accessory uses and structures are those which are subordinate, clearly incidental and customarily appropriate to the operation of the principal use and are permitted in all residential zones. Those permitted accessory uses and structures shall be limited to:

[...]

8. Accessory dwelling units, attached and detached.

a. Development and use standards

i. One attached or one detached accessory dwelling unit may be permitted in conjunction with an existing or proposed dwelling ~~single family residence~~ on lots zoned for single-family or multifamily residential use.

~~ii. The greater of one accessory dwelling unit or accessory dwelling units totaling not more than twenty five percent of the existing dwelling units in a multifamily dwelling structure may be permitted on lots with existing multifamily dwelling structures in any residential or mixed use zone. Such accessory dwelling units must be within existing portions of the existing multifamily dwelling structures that are not used as livable space, including, but not limited to, storage rooms, boiler rooms, passageways, attics, basements, or garages, provided each unit complies with state building standards for dwellings.~~

~~iii. Not more than two detached accessory dwelling units not exceeding sixteen feet in height may be permitted on a lot with an existing multifamily dwelling in any residential or mixed use zone.~~

ii. The floor area of an attached or detached accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed one thousand two hundred square feet.

iii. An additional five percent of lot coverage above that established for the underlying zoning designation shall be allowed for accessory dwelling units only for lots of ten thousand square feet or less and where there is an existing single-family residence.

iv. An accessory dwelling unit may be permitted on the same lot as a junior accessory dwelling unit.

*Moved down to
Section 24.05.0208e.iii*

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208k*

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208m*

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208d*

Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208g

v. Except as provided herein, attached and detached accessory dwelling units shall comply with the development standards of the underlying zone and/or overlay zone, and all other ordinances, regulations, and policies, applicable to the development of residential dwelling units.

Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208n

vi. No lot coverage limitation, front setback, minimum open space requirement, or minimum lot size requirement shall preclude the development of an accessory dwelling unit that is at least eight hundred square feet in area with side and rear setbacks of not less than four feet, provided that all other development standards are met.

vii. Except as provided herein, attached and detached accessory dwelling units shall comply with all local building and fire code requirements, as appropriate.

viii. Accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they are not required for the primary residence. The construction of an accessory dwelling unit shall not trigger a requirement for fire sprinklers to be installed in the existing primary dwelling.

ix. Projects solely proposing the development of an accessory dwelling unit shall be exempt from public right-of-way dedication and improvement requirements.

b. Setbacks for accessory dwelling units

i. Except as provided herein, attached and detached accessory dwelling units shall comply with the setbacks required for the primary dwelling as established by the underlying zoning designation or overlay zone, as applicable.

ii. Notwithstanding the setbacks established by the underlying zoning designation or overlay zone, attached or detached accessory dwelling units shall have a setback of not less than four feet from side and rear property lines, or from the interior edge of adjacent access easements, whichever is more restrictive, except where the underlying zoning allows a lesser setback.

iii. Any accessory dwelling unit that is created by new construction, including additions to existing structures, that does not comply with the setbacks established by the underlying zoning designation or overlay zone shall be maintained as an accessory dwelling unit and shall not be converted to or used for any other purpose without express authorization of the city.

~~(2) Limited to a height of one story and sixteen feet.~~

~~iii. Notwithstanding any other setback requirement, no setback shall be required for the conversion of existing space wholly within an existing primary single-family residence, or an existing garage or accessory structure that are accessory to a single-family residence, to an accessory dwelling unit, provided that setbacks are sufficient for fire safety as determined by the fire marshal or the building official.~~

~~iv. Notwithstanding any other setback requirement, an existing garage or accessory structure located on the same lot as a single-family residence may be replaced with an accessory dwelling unit in compliance with this section in the same location and to the same physical dimension as the existing accessory structure to be replaced, provided that setbacks are sufficient for fire safety as determined by the fire marshal or the building official. The area of the existing accessory structure, or the replacement structure, may be increased by not more than one hundred fifty square feet solely for the purpose of accommodating ingress and egress provided that the new construction for the expansion complies with setback requirements and the area of the accessory dwelling unit plus the area of expansion does not exceed the limits on total living area allowed for an accessory dwelling unit.~~

Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208l.ii.(1)

-
- iv. Building appendages for accessory dwelling units shall comply with Municipal Code Section 24.05.030G.
 - c. Historical sites and districts
 - i. An accessory dwelling unit may be allowed on designated historical sites and within historical districts provided that the location and design of the accessory dwelling unit meets corresponding historical preservation requirements in place at the time the accessory second dwelling unit is built and complies with the requirement of this section.
 - ii. Detached accessory dwelling units shall be located behind the primary residence and/or historic structure.
 - iii. The construction of the accessory dwelling unit shall not result in the removal of any other historically significant accessory structure, such as garages, outbuildings, stables or other similar structures.
 - iv. The accessory dwelling unit shall be designed in substantially the same architectural style and finished materials composition as the primary residence or historic structure.
 - v. Construction of an accessory dwelling unit shall not result in demolition, alteration or movement of the primary residence/historic house and any other on-site features that convey the historic significance of the house and site.
 - vi. If the historic house/site is under a Mills Act contract with the City, the contract shall be amended, as needed, to authorize the introduction of the accessory dwelling unit on the site.

d. Overlay zones

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208u*

i. The requirements of Municipal Code Chapter 24.09, Scenic Preservation Overlay Zone, shall apply to the development of accessory dwelling units, except that planning commission review shall not be required for a project that solely proposes an accessory dwelling unit.

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208v*

ii. Projects proposing solely the development of an accessory dwelling unit shall not be subject to the requirements of Municipal Code Chapter 24.11, Urban Design Overlay Zone, or the requirements of the Urban Design Program.

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208w*

iii. The requirements of Municipal Code Chapter 24.13, Hillside Overlay Zone, shall apply to the development of accessory dwelling units, except that planning commission review shall not be required for a project that solely proposes an accessory dwelling unit.

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208x*

iv. Within the Bowling Green Overlay Zone, any tree that was required to be planted pursuant to Municipal Code Section 24.17.030D that is disturbed by a project to construct an accessory dwelling unit shall be preserved in place, or replaced in kind on the subject property if disturbed by the project.

e. Notwithstanding subsections (a) through (d) above, a building permit shall be ministerially approved for accessory dwelling units in a residential or mixed-use zone when it falls into one of the four categories listed below as provided by California Government Code section 65852.2(e):

i. One accessory dwelling unit on a lot with an existing or proposed single-family dwelling created from converting existing or proposed space within a single-family dwelling, or existing accessory structure, provided that the accessory dwelling unit has exterior access from the existing or proposed single-family dwelling and setbacks are sufficient for fire safety as determined by the fire marshal or the building official. Accessory dwelling units converted from an existing accessory structure may include an expansion of not more than 150 square feet beyond the same physical dimensions as the existing accessory structure solely for the purpose of accommodating ingress and egress.

-
- ii. One detached, new construction, accessory dwelling unit on a lot with an existing or proposed single-family dwelling, provided that the accessory dwelling unit is at least eight hundred square feet in area, has side and rear setbacks of not less than four feet, and complies with the maximum height limitations of the underlying zoning district.
 - iii. One or more accessory dwelling units on a lot with an existing multifamily dwelling converted from non-livable space (including, but not limited to, storage rooms, boiler rooms, passageways, attics, basements, or garages), provided that each unit complies with state building standards. The greater of one accessory dwelling unit or accessory dwelling units totaling not more than twenty-five percent of the existing dwelling units in a multifamily dwelling structure may be permitted on lots with existing multifamily dwelling structures in any residential or mixed-use zone.
 - iv. Up to two detached accessory dwelling units located on a lot with an existing or proposed multifamily dwelling, provided that each unit has side and rear setbacks of not less than four feet and complies with the height limitations of the underlying zoning district. The two accessory dwelling units allowed by this subsection may be created from converting space within an existing accessory structure that is detached from the primary residential structure(s), provided that setbacks are sufficient for fire safety as determined by the fire marshal or the building official. If the existing multifamily dwelling has a rear or side setback of less than four feet, modifications to the existing multifamily dwelling shall not be required.

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208o*

f. Parking

- i. New or additional parking spaces shall not be required for the creation of accessory dwelling units.
- ii. Where provided, parking spaces for accessory dwelling units shall comply with Chapter 24.04 (Parking) of the Municipal Code, including, but not limited to, the design requirements of the Parking Standards adopted by city council resolution no. 17128, or as those standards may be amended or modified by city council action.
- iii. When a garage, carport, or covered parking structure is demolished in conjunction with the construction of an accessory dwelling unit or converted to an accessory dwelling unit, any required parking spaces removed shall not be required to be replaced.

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208q*

g. Utilities

- i. Accessory dwelling units shall not be considered new residential uses for the purposes of calculating connection fees or capacity charges for utilities, including water and sewer service, except that an accessory dwelling unit proposed to be constructed with a new single-family residence may be considered a new residential use for the purposes of calculations connection fees or capacity charges.
- ii. For an accessory dwelling unit that is contained wholly within the space of an existing or proposed single-family residence or an existing accessory structure, plus any expansion of the accessory structure as allowed by Section 24.05.020D8~~(e)(iv)~~, has independent exterior access from the existing residence and the side and rear setbacks are sufficient for fire safety, no new or separate utility connection directly between the accessory dwelling unit and the utility shall be required and no related connection fee or capacity charge shall be imposed, unless the accessory dwelling unit is proposed to be constructed with a new single-family residence.
- iii. For an accessory dwelling unit that does not meet the criteria of Municipal Code Section 24.05.020D8~~c~~(ii) and where the physical characteristics of the lot on which the accessory dwelling unit is proposed preclude connection to the existing utility connection of the

primary dwelling, a new or separate connection directly to the utility shall be required and related connection fees and capacity charges shall be imposed.

- iv. For attached or detached accessory dwelling units constructed on the same lot as an existing multifamily dwelling structure as described in Section 24.05.020D8e(iii) and (iv) ~~and e~~, a new or separate utility connection may be required between the accessory dwelling unit and the utility. The connection may be subject to a connection fee and/or capacity charge.
- v. Connection fees and capacity charges shall be imposed for accessory dwelling unit projects that voluntarily propose a new or separate connection directly between the accessory dwelling unit and the utility.
- vi. When connection fees and/or capacity charges are imposed, the fee and/or charge shall be proportionate to the burden of the proposed accessory dwelling unit, based upon either its area or the number of its drainage fixture unit (DFU) values, as defined in the Uniform Plumbing Code, upon the water or sewer system. The fee and/or charge shall not exceed the reasonable cost of providing this service.
- vii. Prior to approval of an accessory dwelling unit on properties with a private sewage system, approval by the County of San Diego Department of Environmental Health, or any successor agency, shall be required.

h. Permit and review requirements

- i. Not more than one attached accessory dwelling, one detached accessory dwelling unit, and one junior accessory dwelling unit shall be permitted on a lot with an existing or proposed single-family dwelling.
- ii. Not more than two detached, new construction accessory dwelling units shall be permitted on a lot with an existing or proposed multifamily dwelling.
- iii. Applications for accessory dwelling units conforming to the requirements of this section shall be considered ministerially without discretionary review or a hearing, and the City shall approve or deny such applications within sixty calendar days after receiving the application, if there is an existing single-family or multifamily dwelling on the lot. If a permit application for an accessory dwelling unit is submitted with an application for a new single-family or multifamily dwelling on the same lot, approval or denial of the action on the accessory dwelling unit shall be delayed until the City approves or denies acts on the permit application for the single-family or multifamily residence. If the applicant requests a delay, the sixty-day time period shall be extended for the period of the delay.
- iv. The correction of nonconforming zoning conditions, building code violations, or unpermitted structures that do not present a threat to public health and safety and that are not affected by the construction of the accessory dwelling unit shall not be required for approval of a building permit for an accessory dwelling unit. ~~The correction of nonconforming zoning conditions shall not be required as a condition for approval of a permit application for the creation of an accessory dwelling unit.~~
- v. No impact fees shall be imposed for an accessory dwelling unit that is less than seven hundred fifty square feet in area. Any impact fees charged for an accessory dwelling unit that is seven hundred fifty square feet in area or greater shall be assessed proportionately in relation to the square footage of the primary dwelling unit. "Impact fee" as used herein does not include any connection fee or capacity charge charged by a local agency, special district, or water corporation.

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208s*

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208p*

vi. Any demolition permit required for or associated with an application for construction of an accessory dwelling unit shall be reviewed with the application for the accessory dwelling unit and issued at the same time.

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208t*

vii. A certificate of occupancy for an accessory dwelling unit shall not be issued before issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the primary dwelling.

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208aa*

viii. At the request of the owner of an accessory dwelling unit, enforcement of state building standards related to the accessory dwelling unit shall be delayed, subject to compliance with Section 17980.12 of the Health and Safety Code, provided that the accessory dwelling unit was built prior to January 1, 2020.

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208y*

ix. Accessory dwelling units shall not be considered in the application of any ordinance, policy, or program to limit residential growth.

i. Conveyance and rental

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208f*

i. The rental of an accessory dwelling unit created under Section 24.05.020D8f shall be for terms longer than thirty days.

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208e*

ii. An accessory dwelling unit shall not be sold or otherwise conveyed separately from the primary residence, but may be rented.

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208bb*

iii. An accessory dwelling unit may be sold or conveyed separately from the primary residence to a qualified buyer provided that all of the following apply:

- (1) The ADU or primary dwelling ~~property~~ was built or developed by a qualified nonprofit corporation.
- (2) There is an enforceable restriction on the use of the land pursuant to a recorded contract between the qualified buyer and the qualified nonprofit corporation that satisfies all of the requirements specified in paragraph (10) of subdivision (a) of Section 402.1 of the Revenue and Taxation Code.
- (3) The property is held pursuant to a recorded tenancy in common agreement that includes all of the following:
 - (a) The agreement allocates to each qualified buyer an undivided, unequal interest in the property based on the size of the dwelling each qualified buyer occupies.
 - (b) A repurchase option that requires the qualified buyer to first offer the qualified nonprofit corporation to buy the property if the buyer desires to sell or convey the property.
 - (c) A requirement that the qualified buyer occupy the property as the buyer's principal residence.
 - (d) Affordability restrictions on the sale and conveyance of the property that ensure the property will be preserved for low-income housing for forty-five years for owner-occupied housing units and will be sold or resold to a qualified buyer.

(4) If the tenancy in common agreement is recorded after December 31, 2021, it shall also include all of the following:

- (a) Delineation of all areas of the property that are for the exclusive use of a cotenant. Each cotenant shall agree not to claim a right of occupancy to an area delineated for the exclusive use of another cotenant, provided that the

latter cotenant's obligations to each of the other cotenants have been satisfied.

(b) Delineation of each cotenant's responsibility for the costs of taxes, insurance, utilities, general maintenance and repair, improvements, and any other costs, obligations, or liabilities associated with the property. This delineation shall only be binding on the parties to the agreement, and shall not supersede or obviate the liability, whether joint and several or otherwise, of the parties for any cost, obligation, or liability associated with the property where such liability is otherwise established by law or by agreement with a third party.

(c) Procedures for dispute resolution among the parties before resorting to legal action.

(5) A grant deed naming the grantor, grantee, and describing the property interests being transferred shall be recorded in the Office of the San Diego County Recorder. A Preliminary Change of Ownership Report shall be filed concurrently with this grant deed pursuant to Section 480.3 of the Revenue and Taxation Code.

(6) Notwithstanding Section 24.05.020D8c~~g~~, if requested by a utility providing service to the primary residence, the accessory dwelling unit shall have a separate water, sewer, or electrical connection to that utility.

*Previously listed as
Section 24.05.0208cc*

i. For the purposes of this section, the following definitions apply:

i. "Accessory dwelling unit" shall be as defined in Municipal Code Section 24.01.100.

ii. "Living area" shall mean the interior habitable area of a dwelling unit including basements and attics but does not include a garage or any accessory structure.

iii. "Nonconforming zoning condition" means a physical improvement on a property that does not conform with current zoning standards.

iv. "Objective standards" means standards that involve no personal or subjective judgment by a public official and are uniformly verifiable by reference to an external and uniform benchmark or criterion available and knowable by both the development applicant or proponent and the public official prior to submittal.

v. "Proposed dwelling" means a dwelling that is the subject of a permit application and that meets the requirements for permitting.

vi. "Public transit" shall mean a location, including, but not limited to, a bus stop or train station, where the public may access buses, trains, subways, and other forms of transportation that charge set fares, run on fixed routes, and are available to the public.

*Previously listed as Section
24.05.0208bb(vi)(1)*

vii. "Qualified buyer" means persons and families of low or moderate income, as that term is defined in Section 50093 of the Health and Safety Code.

*Previously listed as Section
24.05.0208bb(vi)(2)*

viii. "Qualified nonprofit corporation" means a nonprofit corporation organized pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code that has received a welfare exemption under Section 214.15 of the Revenue and Taxation Code for properties intended to be sold to low-income families who participate in a special no-interest loan program.

9. Junior accessory dwelling units.

- a. One junior accessory dwelling unit may be permitted in conjunction with an existing or proposed single-family residence on lots zoned for single-family or multifamily residential use.

-
- b. A junior accessory dwelling unit may be permitted on the same lot as ~~one an~~ accessory dwelling unit.
 - c. A junior accessory dwelling unit shall not be sold separately from the primary residence.
 - d. A junior accessory dwelling unit may be rented, but only with a rental agreement with terms greater than thirty days.
 - e. The owner of a lot with a junior accessory dwelling unit shall occupy as a principal residence either the primary dwelling or the junior accessory dwelling unit, except where the primary dwelling and junior accessory dwelling are held by an agency such as a land trust or housing organization in an effort to create affordable housing.
 - f. Junior accessory dwelling unit development standards:
 - (i) A junior accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed five hundred square feet in total floor area.
 - (ii) A junior accessory dwelling unit shall be contained entirely within an existing or proposed single-family residence. Attached, enclosed uses, including garages, are considered a part of the proposed or existing single-family residence. For purposes of this subsection, "attached" shall mean that the enclosed use shares a common wall with interior, habitable living space of the primary dwelling unit.
 - (iii) A junior accessory dwelling unit shall be provided with a separate exterior entry.
 - (iv) A junior accessory dwelling unit shall include an efficiency kitchen, with the following components:
 - (1) A cooking facility with appliances.
 - (2) A food preparation counter and storage cabinets that are reasonable to the size of the unit.
 - (v) No additional parking shall be required for a junior accessory dwelling unit other than that required when the existing primary residence was constructed.
 - (vi) A junior accessory dwelling unit may share bathroom/sanitation facilities with the primary residence or may provide separate facilities. If the junior accessory dwelling unit shares sanitation facilities with the primary residence, an interior ~~entry connection~~ to the primary residence's main living area shall be maintained to provide access to the sanitation facilities.
 - g. Except as provided herein, a junior accessory dwelling unit shall comply with all local building and fire code requirements, as appropriate.
 - h. The correction of nonconforming zoning conditions, building code violations, or unpermitted structures that do not present a threat to public health and safety and that are not affected by the construction of the junior accessory dwelling unit shall not be required for approval of a building permit for a junior accessory dwelling unit.
 - i. Junior accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers or fire attenuation specifications if they are not required for the primary residence. An inspection to confirm that the junior accessory dwelling unit complies with development standards may be assessed.
 - j. No sewer or water connection fees shall be required for the development of a junior accessory dwelling unit. An inspection to confirm that the junior accessory dwelling unit complies with development standards may be assessed.
-

-
- k. Prior to issuance of a building permit for a junior accessory dwelling unit, a covenant shall be recorded between the owner and the city of La Mesa agreeing to the terms stipulated in this chapter. The covenant shall specifically mention that:
 - (i) The junior accessory dwelling unit shall not be sold separately from the primary dwelling unit.
 - (ii) The junior accessory dwelling unit may be rented, but only with a rental agreement with terms greater than thirty days.
 - (iii) The junior accessory unit is limited to the size and attributes set forth by this section.
 - (iv) The owner of record of the property shall occupy the primary dwelling unit or the junior accessory dwelling unit, except where the primary dwelling and junior accessory dwelling are held by an agency such as a land trust or housing organization in an effort to create affordable housing.
 - (v) The covenant shall be binding upon any successors in interest or ownership of the property and lack of compliance with the provisions thereof may result in legal action against the property owner, including revocation of the right to maintain a junior accessory dwelling unit on the property.
 - l. Applications for junior accessory dwelling units conforming to the requirements of this section shall be considered ministerially without discretionary review or a hearing, and the city shall approve or deny such applications within sixty calendar days after receiving the application if there is an existing single-family dwelling on the lot. If a permit application for a junior accessory dwelling unit is submitted with an application for a new single-family dwelling on the same lot, the [approval or denial of](#) ~~action on~~ the junior accessory dwelling unit shall be delayed until the City [approves or denies](#) ~~acts on~~ the permit application for the single-family residence. If the applicant requests a delay, the sixty-day time period shall be extended for the period of the delay.
 - m. Projects solely proposing a junior accessory dwelling unit shall be exempt from the requirements for public right-of-way dedication and improvement.

[...]

24.05.030 - Development standards.

[...]

B. TABLE OF DIMENSIONS FOR BUILDING SITES OR LOTS/MINIMUM SETBACKS/AND MAXIMUM HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS FOR STRUCTURES OTHER THAN FENCES.

[...]

***3) Heights of Buildings.

[...]

- b. The maximum height of a detached accessory structure shall be one story not to exceed fifteen feet, except by special permit. This limitation shall not apply to the construction or permitting of accessory dwelling units, ~~which shall comply with the standards set forth in Municipal Code Section 24.05.020.D.8.~~

[...]